
MINUTES 
 

CITY OF DELANO 
CITY COUNCIL – REGULAR MEETING 

April 4, 2016 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Chavez called the meeting to order at 5:36 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers, 1015 – 11th 
Avenue. 
 

INVOCATION 
 
Mr. Dowling offered the invocation. 
 

FLAG SALUTE 
 
Chief DeRosia led the flag salute. 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
Council members present:  Ricardo Chavez, Ruben Hill, Liz Morris, Rueben Pascual, Grace Vallejo 
Council members absent:  none 
 

OFFICIALS PRESENT 
 
City Manager Reyna, City Attorney Garcia, City Clerk Kraft, Finance Director Rios, Police Chief 
DeRosia, City Engineer Dowling, Human Resources Director Zamudio, Chief of Corrections Marshall 
 

PRESENTATIONS AND AWARDS 
 
 Presentation of Certificates of Recognition to Students of Horizons du Monde 

Proclamation Declaring April 2016, as DMV / Donate Life Awareness Month 
 

ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
Ruben Ramos stated he was speaking on behalf of Mother Nature Inc.  He stated they provide an 
environment where patients are safe; in 7 years they have had over 3,000 patients; they provide an 
alternative to those who do not want to take pills; there are benefits to marijuana use; the crime rate has 
gone down; they want to be part of the community. 
 
Bill Hylton stated he has observations about the recycling businesses; the one next to the Fil Bake Shop 
practically does business on sidewalk; Big Dogz is not being treated fairly; CTL Recycling on Cecil 
Avenue and Randolph Street has a Sea-Train and shed, they use a hose from the neighboring business, 
they do not have their own water, they have banners on display; another business was told by code 
enforcement to remove the banners they had on display. 
 
Richard Markham stated that marijuana stores destroy neighborhoods, and if a person needs marijuana, 
they should go to a doctor. 
 



(unable to understand name) stated that if we get rid of marijuana dispensaries, we should also get rid of 
liquor stores; the war on drugs is a failure; the ordinance regarding marijuana will put people of Delano in 
harm’s way; why not provide a safe place for those who use marijuana; the city should set an example for 
other counties to follow; some council members with conservative views need to be replaced. 
 
Jose stated that he owns Mother Nature Inc.; he has compassion for his patients; the marijuana he sells 
has no THC in it; the city needs to regulate the sale of marijuana; his is a very good shop, and it has never 
given anyone any problems. 
 
(unable to understand name) stated thanks to council members for their public service.  He stated he was 
speaking on behalf of Mother Nature Inc.; he has a prescription for marijuana; why not be the city known 
for legalizing marijuana; a lot of veterans really struggle; he cannot believe the VFW was torn down. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1) Authorization to waive the reading of any ordinance or resolution in its entirety and 
consenting to the reading of such ordinances or resolutions by title only 

 
2) Warrant Register in the amount of $1,769,903.63 

 
3) Minutes of special City Council meeting of March 15, 2016; regular meeting of March 

21, 2016 
 
4) Minutes of regular Community Law Enforcement Liaison Board meeting of January 21, 

2016 
 
5) Resolution No. 2016-12 of the City Council of the City of Delano to continue to 

participate in the Federal Surplus Property Reutilization Program (FSPRP) 
 
6) Award the contract for the 2015 ATP – Safe Routes to School Improvements Project for 

Safety and Education for Active Delano School Community ATPL-5227 (053) in the 
amount of $296,056 to JT2 Inc. dba Todd Companies of Visalia     Agr No. 2016-21 

 
7) Award the franchise contract for multi-family residential and commercial recycling 

collection services to South Tulare-Richgrove Refuse Inc. (six year term, beginning May 
1, 2016)     (item pulled for discussion – not approved) 

 
8) Approval for City Manager to enter into an agreement with First Capitol Consulting, Inc. 

to provide assistance with the Affordable Care Act (ACA) Compliance for 2016 and 
appropriate $12,500 to Human Resource Department line item 01-5524-120 for FY 15/16 
and $12,500 to line item 01-5524-120 for FY 16/17      Agreement No. 2016-22 

 
9) Accept donation of $500 on behalf of Wonderful Giving, the Wonderful Company’s 

grants program, for the City of Delano Parks and Recreation 
 
10) Approval of the co-sponsorship of All You Can Eat Meat Feed in the total amount of 

$900 for the usage of the Armory National Guard building on September 30 and October 
1, 2016 

 
A member of the public asked that item #7 be pulled for discussion. 
 



Moved by Councilwoman Vallejo, seconded by Councilwoman Morris, and unanimously carried to 
approve the Consent Agenda items #1-6, and #8-10. 
 
Item #7)  Mr. Dowling presented the staff report. 
 
Roberto Ibarra asked if it will be disclosed in the Delano Record and if customers will still have to pay for 
blue, gray and black bins.  Mr. Dowling informed him that if the contract is awarded, it will be made 
public; the bins are the responsibility of the contractor; the contract is for commercial and multi-family 
accounts, not single family accounts. 
 
David Guerrero, President South Tulare Richgrove Refuse, stated: his company is a hauler in Kern and 
Tulare counties; they have a motor carrier permit for ten trucks; they work closely with farmers and 
commercial customers; they diverted 6,366 tons in 2015 for a monthly average of 531 tons; they are 
prepared and capable to fulfill the RFP; this job will be no different than what they already do; they have 
calculated the costs; the franchise fees will allow the city to do street repairs 
 
Richard Grass stated: he owns a garbage company in Pixley; he is the president of the Tulare County 
Haulers Association; the city will not find a more honest, harder working company than South Tulare  
Richgrove Refuse; it is a smart decision to hire them 
 
Carlos Garcia, R&F Disposal stated: it is his understanding that documents were provided by South 
Tulare Richgrove Refuse after the bid process; they were never asked to clarify nor given an opportunity 
to respond to the negative letter from Kern County; South Tulare Richgrove Refuse is in Tulare, not Kern 
County; there will be problems with the city’s infrastructure with four companies doing refuse; R&F is 
already doing business in Delano with roll-offs; they serve the school district; the RFP talked about 
diversion; he is asking that the bids be rejected 
 
Mr. Dowling noted the letter from Kern County had a cc to R&F Disposal, so staff assumes they were 
aware of it; the documents received after the bids were opened had no real substance; the RFP stated the 
vendor could arrange for or provide the e-waste program; staff consulted with the city attorney after the 
last meeting and was advised to not ask for any more documents 
 
Mike Thomas, President of Kern County Rural Haulers Association stated: the city and association share 
the same goals regarding diversion; the association’s goal is to help Kern County meet the diversion and 
recycling goals; South Tulare Richgrove Refuse does this; four families are in the association; they 
provide jobs to over 70 people; South Tulare Richgrove plays a key roll; they are dedicated to their work 
and have the expertise to do the job; should they encounter problems, the association would help them 
fulfill their commitment.  He asked the city to award the contract to South Tulare Richgrove Refuse. 
 
Ed Barrith stated: he lives on Kyte Avenue and has been using South Tulare Richgrove Refuse since 
1984; the service is great and he has had no problems; they are local and only one mile off County Line 
Road; they open their facility for people to bring their spring cleaning items 
 
Alex Guerrero stated: she is asking council to support South Tulare Richgrove Refuse; the supporters 
believe in South Tulare Richgrove Refuse and know they will fulfill the contract; some of the customers 
include Pandol Brothers, M. Caratan, 4 Star, Wonderful Citrus, Horonus; the franchise fee offered in the 
proposal should not be questioned; ask council to approve the contract 
 
Mark Phillips stated: he is a retired firefighter who has used South Tulare Richgrove Refuse for 25 years; 
the service has been excellent; they are willing to make a requested extra trip at no extra charge 
 



Jose Nunez stated this discussion is going way out of hand and a decision should be made. 
 
Irma Legron stated: she is the office manager for South Tulare Richgrove Refuse; the company is ready to 
merge with the city to do the billing; they have state-of-the-art software; they provide billing service for 
many large accounts including the Housing Authority; they are a certified e-waste hauler; they have 
educational programs for students; they will work with the city regarding state mandates and regulation 
compliance; they stand by their bid amount 
 
Jeff Martin stated: he is the owner of the recycling facility in Wasco; he has worked with South Tulare 
Richgrove Refuse; they are very responsive; he recommends the city use them 
 
Councilman Hill stated: this is a very difficult decision; both are good companies 
 
Councilwoman Vallejo stated: both are good companies; Councilman Pascual brought up that we should 
do this service in-house; she met with Mr. Dowling regarding questions she had; this vote has nothing to 
do with either company or the bids 
 
Councilman Pascual stated: he had asked to do this service in-house; council asked staff to put out for 
bids and make a recommendation; staff reviewed the bids and made the recommendation to award the 
contract to South Tulare Richgrove Refuse; we should honor the proposal that we put out.  Councilman 
Pascual read qualifications and comments from Kern County from the staff report. 
 
Mayor Chavez stated: a special meeting was held regarding this item; staff went out for bids and followed 
the ordinance; only two bids were received because this is a small contract; we have assurance from Kern 
County Rural Hauler Association that service will be provided; there is no reason to stall any longer 
 
Moved by Councilwoman Vallejo, seconded by Councilwoman Morris and carried by the following vote 
to reject all bids.  AYES: Hill, Morris, Vallejo    NOES: Chavez, Pascual 
 
Moved by Councilwoman Vallejo, seconded by Councilwoman Morris and carried by the following vote 
to direct staff to provide the service in-house.   AYES: Hill, Morris, Pascual, Vallejo      NOES: Chavez 
 
Richard Monte stated an objection to the last motion being made.  He stated the item on the agenda only 
stated award of contract.  City Attorney Garcia replied that council may take this action.  It is a follow-up 
to the first motion made. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
11) Public Hearing No. 2016-05: (continued from March 21, 2016) Introduction and first 

reading of an ordinance amending City of Delano Municipal Code Title 6 Section 6.64 
Tobacco Retailer’s Permit 

 
Chief DeRosia presented the staff report. 
 
Mayor Chavez asked for public comments.  There were no public comments. 
 
Mayor Chavez closed the public hearing. 
 
Moved by Councilwoman Vallejo, seconded by Councilman Pascual and unanimously carried to approve 
the introduction and first reading of Ordinance No. 2016-1284 
 



REGULAR AGENDA 
 

12) Appointments to Citizen Review Committee (Measure I Sales Tax) and Personnel Board 
 

Ms. Reyna presented the staff report.  There was brief discussion. 
 
Moved by Councilwoman Vallejo, seconded by Councilwoman Morris and unanimously carried to direct 
staff to advertise for applications for both and bring the item back in May. 
 

DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS 
No items. 
 

COUNCIL STATEMENTS AND REPORTS 
 
Councilwoman Morris announced Relay for Life will be held this weekend. 
 
Councilman Hill no items 
 
Councilwoman Vallejo stated it is nice when people star for whole meeting.  She stated the purpose of the 
council meeting is to take care of city business, but council members can also hear public comments.  She 
will check with the city attorney regarding what can be done about marijuana dispensaries.  She reported 
that Rudy Salas held a Day of Service for Caesar Chavez Day in Bakersfield and suggested that maybe 
the city can do something here next year. 
 
Councilman Pascual no items 
 
Mayor Chavez offered his condolences to the family of Garrett Lake.  He asked for information on the 
PACE Program.  He stated he is getting complaints regarding street vendors on Valentine’s Day, 
Mother’s Day, etc.  He stated we need to make sure everyone follows the law.  Mayor Chavez asked for 
information on the city’s sign ordinance. 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
No items. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Moved by Councilman Pascual, seconded by Councilwoman Vallejo, and unanimously carried to adjourn 
the meeting at 7:23 p.m. 
 
______________________ 
Phyllis A. Kraft, City Clerk 


